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114 COHEN, Aaron

Chapman died on 29 December 1849, ‘after a painful illuess’. He died intestate
with an estate of less than £50. His two sons, Benjarun and Henry Edward, had
both died in childhood. Rebecca, his widow, became the housekeeper of Jacob
Myers (q.v.) at Yass Rebecca’s younger sister, Ann, married Lewis David Levy
{g.v.} at Camden in August 1840,

Ship Indent 474067, 16 May 1828, 28/29; 4/4313, 21 December 1832; CF 32/ 1092; Spdnep Gazerer, 21 April
1828, 29 December [829, Marriages Allowed 183t, 4/4512, no 32; Principal Supennrendent of Convicrs,
Jonoary 1831 = July 1837, Hawkesbury Benevolent Society, ML, A625, p. 77; 473665, p 129, ieanrns of the
Colony, 4/282; 4/4067, 28/29; New Serth Wiales Covermmenr Gazette, 10 Febroary 1836, p. 208, 1840, p 966,
G E] Bergman, ‘Israel Chapman, 1794-1868, Avsirahia’s First Polee Detective, and Noel Chapman, Chiel"
Consiable’, AJJHS, vol 6, no. 7 (1969), AG, pp 73,75

| COHEN, Aaron

b. London, 18171875
1849; Free
Single; Dealer

The child of Philip and Jane Cohen of London, Aaron Cohen arrived in Seurh
Australia and established a grocery business He died in Adelaide on 27 March 1875.

. COHEN, Abraham

B London, 17641843
Lotus, 1833; Convict; Sentenced to 14 years, Old Bailey, 1832
Married; Dealer and {abourer; Height: 163 cm; 5 children {in England)

Ruddy complexion, long head, grey haiy, aquiline nose. Lost several front reeth. Large mouth. A Jew,
His wife, Elizabeth, lived in North London. Abraham Colen was the father of Isaac Cohen (g.12),
wito was transporfed o the same ship for the same offence: receiving stolen goods Fiis other childyen
arid his twife remained in England

Cohen was sixty-nine years old when he arrived as a prisoner in Hobart Town
on 16 May 1833 Cohen’s police dossier has no offences listed and he received a
conditional pardon on 2 June 1842. He had rented seat no. 99 1n the back of the
Hobart Synagogue. He died at Hobart Town on 10 February 1843, at the age of
seventy-nine

CON 31/7,n0 15311; CON 18/13; Hoebare Towen Cavrier, 10 June 1842, CP 490

COHEN, Abraham

b. Brighton, 18121874
Warrior, 1835; Free.
Single; 12 children,

Abraham Cohen was the fifth son of Emanue] Hyam Cohen and Hannah (née
Benjamin) He was the brother of Levy Emanuel Cohen, Nathan Cohen, and
Raphael Cohen (g.v.), who arrived on 22 October 1839, Emanuel Hyam Cohen
was the founder of the Jewwsh congregation in Brighton, England. Abraham
Cohen migrated to Australia travelling steerage on the Warrior, arriving in Sydney
on 27 February 1835, and married Sophia Cohen (q.v.) in Sydney on 27 July
1836 Sophia was the daughter of Henry Simeon Cohen and Elizabeth Cohen

it
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COHEN, Abraham (Thomas PHILLIPS, Samuel PHILLIPS, Emanuel COHEN) 11§

(qq.v.). Their first three children were born in Sydney between 1837 and 1839
and, late in 1839, the family moved to Port Macquarie,

Abraham and Sophia had ten surviving children: Rosa {27 July 1836} born
in Sydney and died at birth; a second Resa (12 June 1837), who died at Port
Macquarie on 29 Qcrober 1840); Frederick (4 Augusc 1838), born i Sydney;
Famny (q.v) (22 July 1839), born in Sydney, who married Benjamnin Benjamin
(g-v.}; Henry Emanuel {q.v.) and George (q.v), twins (1 September 1840), born at
Port Macquarie; Nathan (q.v) (10 July 1842), born at Port Macquaric: Caroline
{q-v.) (2 March 1844}, born at Port Macquarie; Hannah (1 July 1845}, at Port
Macquarte; Sarah (1 July 1847), at Port Macquarie, Jane (Jenny) Matilda (1849,
mamed on 5 January 1850}, born ac Castlercagh Street, Sydney; and Miriam
(Minnie} (27 February 1852), in Sydney.

Abraham Cohen was in charge of the printing and accounts ar the office of
the Australian 1n 1836 and, 1n 1838, offered to print the dcbates of the Legislative
Council In September 1839 he sold his interest to his busmess parmer, George
Robert Nichols. Abraham Cohen had various businesses in New South Wales
country towns, chiefly Port Macquarie and Goulburn. In 1840, he became the
licensee of a hotel, the Speed the Plough, at the corner of William and Horton
streets in Port Macquarie, taking over from his brother-in-law Solomon Marks
(q v.). In 1841 Abraham Cohen and IDr J. Fattorini formed a steam ship comparny
to purchase a steam ship that would be able to enter the shallow harbour entrance
of the port. The plan was too ambinons, undercapitalised, and fuiled to come
to fruition.

Abraham was steward of the Lodge Australia no, 548 in 1837. In that same
year he briefly served as president of the York Street Synagogue Committee
Abraham Cohen gave £15 to the Sydney Synagogue appeal in OQctober 1839 On
13 November 1843, he was appointed the representative of the Sydney Synagogue
1n Port Macquaric. Cohen settled in Sydney in 1848 where he became the owner
of Cohen’ Family Hotel in Wynyard Square. Cohen died ar Wynyard Square on
22 January 1874 Sophia, his widow, died in Sydney in December 1882

Ship Indent 4/5208; 5 4/2397 2, 38/312; 472403, 38/10006; clustrafian, 1 April 1836, 13 June 1R37,
19 Becember 1837, 9 March 1839: Sydney Moring Herald, 7 November {844; Syduey Geoend Heade List, 19 May
18735

COHEN, Abraham (Thomas PHILLIPS, Samuel PHILLIPS,
Emanuel COHEN)
b. Whitechapel, 1822

Equestrian (2), 1845; Convict; Sentenced to 15 years, Oxford Quarter Sessions, 7 April 1845
Single; Labourer,

Ruddy complexion, oval face, dark broum hafr, black eyebreiws, fazel eyes, large nose and moth,
Shighr cuue ont lowwer lip and a ble marke and sear o teft arm belowr the elbow Sear on left fow and sear
over left eyebrows Abrahan Cohen was convicted of stealing jewellery and woney. He had a previons
coneiction in Oxford for stealing seney and had been seur to prison for six mouths. Swurgeon s yepors:
‘Good" He was deseribed as a Protestanr who conild read ‘a lirrle’
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130 COHEN, Henry joseph

COHEN, Henry Joseph

Free.
Dealer.

Henry Joseph Cohen was the brother of Phillip Joseph Cohen (q.v.) and step-
brother of Simeon Joseph Cohen (g.v.}. In 1836 Henry Joseph Cohen ‘of Sydney’
was listed as having purchased two allotments of land at Paterson for £16. A quar-
rel between Cohen and Lewis Samuvel resulted in Cohen preferring charges
against Samuel for continually threatening him

On 18 August 1837 Henry Joseph announced in the Auwstrafion that he had
‘removed’ to Bridge Street Cohen was a seat holder at the Sydney Synagogue and
on 15 Septewber 1839 eave rwenty-one guineas to the building fund,

Cohen was the licensee of the Shamrock Inn when it was reportedly robbed
by bushrangers on 1 December 1840 On 27 july 1841, ‘“Henry Joseph Cohen,
innkeeper at Black Creek’ (County of Northumberland), was insolvent Simeon
Joseph Cohen and Alfred Levien (q.v.) of West Maitland were appointed the
trustees of the estate. By 1848 Henry had become the landlord of the Fitzroy
Hotel, The Shipping Gazette of September 1849 recorded that he owned the Thiste
and he was one of the four Jewish ship owners in the colony.

Land Conespondence, 2/7827, 17 February 1836: Syduey Gazerte, 5 July 1836, 27 July 184 1; Maittand Merciry,
28 October 1846, Sydney Clironicle, 8 Apnil 1848, Auuralian, 18 August 1837, 1 Decenber 1840

COHEN, Henry Simeon
b. London, 1796-1867

Lioyds (1}, 1833; Convict; Sentenced to 14 years, London, 1833
| Married; Merchant, haberdasher; Height: 156 cm; 12 children

Fair, niddy complexion, brown fan and bald headed, blie eyes, breast hairy. Typically for a tailor e
hiad a scar on the ball and back of his feft ithuiunh. Henry Cohen had ro previous convictions How-
ever, s was the third time stolen promissory notes were found in his possession. He had "upliimited
credit" i the City of London and his business at 126 Fdgware Road, Paddingion, was a prosperons
one. Cohen stated:

I resiien in iy business betiveen L4000 and L5000 per year. How then ean I avoid those

impositions intposed upon we? If I refiise fo take the notes, [ inay as well shut up shop, as some

iweeks | fake £60 or £70 in notes and are iy the habit continnally of taking conntry notes

being near the Paddington-cansl, where boats come from alf parts of the country ___ restore me

to my wife and ten helplesy children
Coheir was sentenced on 19 March 1833 and transported for being in possession of four stoler bank
promissory notes valied at £30. Henry was the sonr of Nathan Cofien and Prisciflo Frances (née
Benjaming. His wife was Efizabeth Colien (g.v) (danghter of Nathan Sivumons and Sarah, née
Phutlips) They had marvied in 1813 The family lived above the business inn Edgiare Road, His son-
in-law, Joseph Sivnuions (g v}, the lnisband of Is danghter Nancey, and the remainder of the family,
arrived oit {fie Brothers fn {833

Henry Cohen arrived in Sydney on 18 December 1833 His mtial assignment
was to the Mounted Police as a tailor though this was found to be a mistake, as
Cohen tesufied that he knew ‘nothing of the trade’. On being interviewed by the



COHEN, Henry Simeon 13t

Principal Superintendent of Convicts he was found to be one of the class of con-
victs called ‘special’ The Superintendent wrote “This man is a Jew, and was tried
for having stolen Bank notes, and | am informed, his family have brought a large
sum of money to the colony by the Brodhers’. Cohen was assigned on 10 January
1834 to Major Archibald Clunes [nnes in Port Macquarie, in whose service he
remained for six years. His wife, Elizabeth, and their ten children came out as pas-
sengers on the Brothers, which arrived three days after the convict transport that
brought Henry to Australia. Together with the family were two servants, Elizabeth
Solomeon (q.v.) and Martha Lawler.

In June 1839 Cohen requested a pardon, staung that he was married with
‘12 children’. He had worked with ‘unceasing endeavour to the sartisfaction of his
employer’. He boasted that he had ‘not been unsuccessful in his efforts’ and that his
wife Elizabeth kept a clothing shop in Horton Street in the cente of town.
Cohen’s petition was accompanicd by a host of glowing character references, The
bencvolent Major Innes testificd: ‘His wife and large family have gained the good
opmion of all here’, Other recommendations rcad: ‘He has gained tor his family
the estimation of every person who has known him .. and his exemplary wife”.
The Colonial Secretary noted that the petition is ‘quite out of order as he has
never held a ticket of leave’. Cohen was granted the ticker of leave on 14 February
1840 and he was ‘Allowed to remain n the District of Port Macquarie’. He then
obtained a licence for Cohen’s Hotel. He received a conditional pardaon, granted
by the Governor, on | July 1842,

In the Sydney Morning Herald of 24 February 1845, Henry Cohen of Port
Macquaric thanked the sertlers for their support over the past eleven years and
announced he had ‘resigned the management of the store’ to his sons, E. and
Samuel Henry Cohen. He was to reside in Sydney. Henry watched the markets,
and commenced 1 Sydney as a merchant and general commissions agent with
office and stores in Charlotte Place. He was listed i the Sydney Commercial Direc-
jory of 1851 as a ‘merchant and ship owner of 325 Castlereagh St north'. The
family owned a small, but proficable, intercolonial schooner named the Elizabeths
Cohen, which sailed between Port Macquarie and Syduey untl its shipwreck in
1857 In the Syduey Morning Herald of 2 Sepreinber 1854, Henry was listed as the
collecior for “The Jerusalern Fund' for the maintenance of the poor in the Holy
Land. He was elected president of the York Streec Synagogue n 1859

Elizabeth Cohen died ac their home In Margaret Street, Wynyard Square, on
13 February 1866, ac the age of seventy-four, and was buried in the Jewish section
of the Devonshire Street Cemetery. Henry died on 1 August 1867 and was buried
at the Jewish section of the Rookwood Cemetery. His estate consisted of forry
houses and cottages around Sydney and cash bequests toralhing £2025

The children of Henry and Elizabeth were: Nancy {1814—-18606), who married
her first cousin, Joseph Simmons {g.v.), in England; Soplua (q.v) (1816-1882),
who married Abraham Cohen (q.v.); Ann (Hannah) (g v.), who married Solomon
Marks {q.v.); Samuel Henry {q.v.) (1821-1899), who married Elizabeth Hyanis:
Edward Aaron (q.v.) (1822—1877), who married Rebecca Benjamin; Philip {q.v)
(1825-1898); Joseph (q.v.) {1826—1893), who married Mary Hart; Caroline (¢, v.)



132 COHEN, Isaac

(1827-1881), who married Asher (Arthur) Isaac Nathan (q.v.); Lewis (q.v)
(1831-1903); and William (q.v.} (1832-1871), who married Samh Solomon.
Their last two children, born in Port Macquarie, were Frances (Fanny) (qv.)
(1834-1884), who married Henry Solomon, and Jane (q.v.} (1837-1907), who
married 1Javid Lawrence Levy.

OBSP, 1832-33, case 1015, p 525F barque Liopdds Printed Indent, no. 33-3400; €S 34/256. 13 Janvary 1834,
472240 2: C% IX6798. X 615: TL 40/356, {4 February 1840 HO 10/53; CP 43/183; story of the Cohen
farmuly, wold by Philip Charles Cohen of Sydney, available on disk; detiled family information from Mrs Ruth
Marks and Mr Stuart Cohen, Melbourne

COHEN, Isaac

b. London, 181
Lotus, 1833; Convict; Sentenced to 14 years, Old Bailey, 1832,
Single; Labaurer; Height: 168 cm.

Darke complexion, narrow face, dark brown hair, aquiline wose. Isaac Cohen was transporied for
receiving stolen goods. His father, Abraltam Cohen (g.v}, 1as on the same transport with frine. Hulle
report: *Good’,

On 26 April 1837, Isaac Cohen was convicted of neglect of duty and gross
insolence while in the service of Mr Porter. He was sentenced to six months hard
labour in chains and sent to the Bagdad Road Parcy, and later to Green Ponds. On
11 December 1838 he was accused of ‘maliciously inventing a case to obtain a
fine’ while serving as a constable. The case was dismissed. However, on 4 October
1839, he was convicted of gross misconduct while serving as a constable. He was
‘deprived of his ticket of leave and put to hard labour on the roads for six months
being assigned to the Hobart Town Surveyor’s Gang’. On 25 November 1839 he
was working with the Town Surveyor's Gang when he was found guilty of dis-
obedience of orders and put in a cell for six days on bread and water. A ticket of
leave was issued on 19 November 1841, His conditional pardon was approved on
17 January 1845 and a certificate of freedom granted on 16 June 1847.

CON 31/7.n0 1512;CON 18/13

COHEN, Isaac

b. Houndsditch, 1814
Maria Somes (1), 1B44; Convict; Sentenced to 10 years, Central Criminal Court, 1844,
| Single; Tailor; Height: 173 cm.

Fresh complexion, black hair and whiskers, long face, hazel eyes, large nose and monih and a double
chin. Inoculation mares on left and right arms. Isaac Cohen'’s conviction for embezzling £ 600 was
Iris second conviction. The previous one was for stealing a handkerchicf in Cheapside,

Isaac Cohen arrived in Van Diemen’s Land on 30 July 1844. His initial period of
probaton was for eighteen months on Maria Island, which was extended by frve
and a half months for three minor offences. He left the island penal settlement
in May 1846. His assigned service was spent mainly in Hobart. He appears to
have worked for a number of Jews including Joshua Marks (g.v.) of the New
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OBSP, 1813, case 574, p. 3131.; Ship Indenc 474005, p. 34; CS Miscellancous Persons, Our 4/3682, 14 November
1836; Moritor, 10 April 1830; Assimlian, 6 January 1842; Sydwey Moming Hemld, 25 September, 2 November
1848; Sydwcy Gazette, ¥ January 1823, 30 Januvary 1823, 18 December 1823, 23 April 1827, 3 February 1827,
9 July 1828, 5 September 1828, 13 October 1828, 1 April 1830, 30 June 1831, 26 January 1833, 18 Seprember
1834; TL no. 241, sec no. 27, in 4/1860, CS Lewers Received 1819, Peddons for Mitigation of Sentence

SIMMONS, joseph
b. London, 18101893
Arab, 1830; Free
Married; Dealer, theatrical producer; g children.

Joseph Simmons was the son of Nathan and Sarah Simmons of London, and the
younger brother of the emancipist James Simmons (g.v.) and the free settler Isaac
Simmons (g.v.). joseph Simmons first appeared on the stage in London when he
was twelve years old and at the age of twenty he set sail for Sydney to join his
emancipist brother. In June 1831 Simmons took out an auctioneer’s licence and
entered into a cornmercial partmership with his brother James ar the Jerusalem
‘Warehouse. On the voyage home he stopped in Van Diemen’s Land and held
popular pioneer theatrical evenings in both Hobart Town and Launceston. He
returned to England in 1832 where he married Nancy Cohen (Simmons, g.v.), the
daughter of the London broker Henry Simeon Cohen (q.v.) and his wife
Elizabeth Cohen (q.v.).

Simmons packed up all the family and returned to New South Wales in 1833
to set up in business by himself. The Sydnep Gazette of 21 January 1834 announced:
‘Mr Joseph Simmons, lately arrived from England, has opened a new warehouse
which he designated “The Paddington House” in Underwood’s Building, George
St'. He boasted that he was selling fancy and other goods unequalled in Sydney for
variety, quality and cheapness. Siinmons embarked upon a panallel theatrical
career, working for Barnetr Levey (q.v.) at the Theatre Royal as stage manager and
actor. In 1835 a son, James, was born to Joseph and ‘Hannah’ Sirnmons in Sydney.
In May 1843 a seven-week-old daughter Sarah was buried in the Devonshire
Street Jewish Cemetery. In 1847 (a second) Sarah was born to Joseph and Nancy
Simmons in Bathurst. The 15-year-old James married his first cousin Agnes in a
Jewish ceremony in Sydney in 1850.

On 10 March 1836 the Sydney Gazette reported that Simmons was considering
going to Calcutta in order to take on the lease of the Dum Dum Theatre. He
remained in Australia and later in 1836 it was reported that he had ‘abandoned all
thoughts of theatrical glory and taken himself to the more lucrative employment
of auctioneer. We will have a little peace and quietness in theatrical matrers’. The
report was overly optumisac. Simmons visited Van Diemen’s Land in 1836 where
he performed and sang *very successfully’ at several ‘At Homes’. In 1839 Mr Joseph
Simmons pledged /20 to the Sydney Synagogue building appeal. In 1840
Simmons took over Sydney’s Royal Victoria Theatre and produced a drama and
comedy in three acts called The Duelfist, which he said was ‘the first truly original
drama ever produced in the Colony’. His evening ‘entertainments’ were regularly
held. They consisted of a ‘choice collection of glees, duets, solos, serious and
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702 SIMMONS, Joshua

comic and a weekly budget of Extemporancous drollery such as ' George Streer
Coureship” or “The Strictest Propriety” presented by Mr Simmeons”. On 31 June
1842 Simmons played lago in Othello in the Royal City Theatre. On 1 July 1842
Joseph Simmons, ‘actor and manager’, filed a schedule for bankruptey; he was dis-
charged from insolvency on 12 February 1844, Simmons took over the Tavistock
Hotel in September 1844 and, at his Simmons’ Salon, held Concert Nights.

By 1848 Simmons had begun a new career in Bathurst as the owner of the
Cheap General Stores. In 1849 he was active as a director in the Bathurst Copper
Mining Co. He became the proprietor of Simmons Store at Bathurst and Carcoar
On 23 February 1850 Simmons moved back to Sydney, leaving his Bathurst
Beehive to be managed by Raphael Tolano {q.v.}, formerly of Canowindra, while
his stare at Carcoar was managed by Mr R. Copen. Simmons was very unlucky.
Immediately after his move to Sydney the gold rush began. The Bacharst store
was bought by S. Solomon and Co. and his Carcoar store by Raphael Tolano, boch
whom were among the first Australian gold buyers In 1859 he served as the
president of the Sydney Synagogue.

Simmons settled in Melbourne, where he worked as an ‘elocutonist’, He
married a second time, on 25 August 1852, at the residence of his brother Isaac
Simmons in George Street. His wife was Sarah Cohen, Edward Cohen’s (q.v.)
sister. Their daughter became a singer. Simmons died at the age of eighty—three on
9 August 1893 at 33 Upper William Screet, Darlinghurst, at the hotel owned by his
nephew George Cohen. His death certificate described him as an ‘elocutionist’
and he was buried at Rookwood. His estate was valued at /44

Joseph Simmons had nine children: James (born 1835), Edward (1840}, Isaac
(1842), Sarah {1843), Walter (1844), Sophia {1845), Sarah (1847), Jane (1851}, and
a daughter with his second wife, Sarah.

Syduey Clazerte, 30 June 1831, 21 Janvary 1834, 10 Maich 1836, 20 Ocrober 1836; Syduey Morwng Herald,
14 February 1843, 31 June 1842, 1 July 1813, 12 February 1844, 24 April 1844, 4 Seprember 1844, 14 Seprember
1844, 472655 The Ducffis; Bafiest Free Press, 9 February 1850; The Bee of Austrafia, 2 November [844; CS (Mss
ol Plays) 4/2653; Miscellaneous Persony 4/3548; F, L. Oppenheim, Jamies Simmons’, in ADH, vol 2, p 445£

-SIMMONS, Joshua

b Spitalfields, 1801
St Vincent (3}, 1853, Convict; Sentenced to 10 years. Central Criminal Court, 1849.
Married; Dealer; Height: 160 cm.

Fair complexion, dark brown hais, light brown cyebrows, biue cyes, lage nose. Jew Can read and
write. Jostwa Sinnnons teas trausported for receiving stolew property. He had kept a second-land
clothes shop in Field Lane and was ‘well known’ to the police. The police noticed hinr carrying a bag
aleng Holbern Hll. When questioned e claimed it comtained trousering saff boughit from a stranger
in Oxford Streee. He then atieipted to bribe the police officers and 1was prompily arrested. He broke
free and was chased and, before being cavight, managed 10 poke owe of his prirsuers in the epe with hs
wnbrella. A Judal Solomons gave evidence in support of the prisoner, saying that he lad been offered
a piece of siilar wiaterial, Fifteen witnesses gave evidence of good character birt only one cven knew
where Sivrons actvally lived. On 20 Angust 1849 the jury took four and a half hoirs to come to
its verdict of guilty. The police dien testified that Simmtons’ house was “a den of thieves and eriminals
who had returned from transporiation’
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76  BENJAMIN, Benjarnin

Susan Ballyn and Lucy Frost. 'Scpharh Convices in Van Dicmen’s Land’, an P Elias and A Ehias (eds), A Few from
Afar, p. 750, VDL papers, ML, A1930, p 393; Hobart Toun Conrier, 21 Apnd 1837, CON 22/2, na 983; CON
52/F, p 35, CON 31/1; MM 31/1; CON 23/ 1. HO 10/36; H5TY 285/1, Owder for the recepnion of an imane
petson, 21 April 1869, ADT,

| BENJAMIN, Benjamin
| 77751837
Benjamin Benjamin was buried at the old Hobart Town Jewish Cemetery in

Harrington Street on 12 September 1837. His widow, Eve, aged sixty-eight, was
buried in Hobart Town by the synagogue on 4 July 1852.

| BENJAMIN, Benjamin

| b London, 1834—1908
London, 1843; Free.
16 children,

Benjamin was the eldest son of Moses Benjamin (q.v.} and Catherine (née
Moses). Moses brought his wife and six children to Melbourne, intending to
join his younger half-brother, Solomon Benjumin, in business. They arrived on
29 December 1843 Benjamin was the cldest child, at nine. His brothers and sisters
were Rebecca, Rachel, Elias, David and Frances.

After he had finished school m Melbourne, Benjamin joined his father and
brother Elias a5 a draper and haberdasher in his father’s business, Albert House,
Collins Street, The family inicially lived at 7 Collins Street, three doors up from
Elizabeth Street. On 5 August 1857, Benjamin married his niece, Fanny (q.v), the
daughter of Abrahaim and Sophia Cohen (qq.v.). When Moses Benjamin retired in
1864, his son began a partnership with his brother-in-law Edward Cohen {q.v).
The new business initially specialised 1n importing tea and operated as a gencral
commission agency. Together, Benjamin and Cohen bought a substantial sheep
station on the Murray River known as Canally. The partmership ended in 1877
with Cohen's death. Benjemin inherited £60 000 from his father’s estate and in
1878 Benjamin tetired from business and entcred local politics.

i Benjamin was treasurer of the Melbourne Hebrew Congregation from 1860 to
1865, He was president from 1868 to 1875, in 1879, and 1n 1885. In 1870 he built
the Italianate brick mansion, Canally, in East Melbourne. He was elected to the
Melbourne City Council in 1870 and served for more than twenty years. He was
elected mayor in 1887 and 1888, the year of the centenary of Australia’s European
settlement, He played a leading role in the formal celebranons and the Great
Exhibition that was held at the Melbourne Exhibition Building. As mayor he also

3 opened the new Princes Bridge across the Yarra River, At the conclusion of the
& year, Benjamin became the second Australian, and the first mayor of Melbourne,

to be knighted. In 1889 he was elected to the Victorian Legslative Council, rep-
4 resenting Melbourne Province. He supported the federation movemennt, free trade
1 between the colonies and the eight-hour day. The financial crash in the early

1890s, and the dishonesty of his business parimers, consumed his wealth and forced
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BENJAMIN, David 77

him to resign from every public office and he was only able to pay his debtors one
shilling in the pound. The Budlerin magazine nicknamed him *Bingy Bingy’ and
claimed that his pursuit of glory had been his undoing.

Sir Benjamin Benjamin died on 7 March 1905. He was survived by his wife,
seven sons and six danghters. The sixteen children of Sir Benjamin and Lady Fanny
were Maurice Edward (1858—1914), Catherine (1860—1875), Abraham Herbert
(1861=1925), Florence Sophia (1863—-1924), Percy Lionel (1865-1903), Edith
Fanny (1867-1924), Frank Bedford (1868-1884), Howard EhLas (1870-1933),
Minnie Violet {1871-1953), Ida Rose (1873—1949), May Constance (1876—1952),
Leslie Ronald (1878-1942), Gerald Septimwus (1879-1942}, Stanley Ocravius
(18801916}, Oswald Deronda (1884—1944), and Myra Lihian (1885-1958)

Rodney Benjamin, ‘Early Melbourne and the Benjamin Brothers', AJJHS, vol. 13, uo, 3 {1996). p. 385 *Su
Bengaimin Benjamin®, AHS, vol 6, na, 3 (1967}, p. 1296 G Solomon, *Sir Benpanin Benjamsin'. in ADB, val 3
pp. 139—4); Brrdlern, 11 March 1903

BENJAMIN, David

b. London, 18151885

Henry, 1838; Free

Single; Shopkeeper; 6 children,

David Benjamin was the youngest son of Lyon Benjamin and his first wife,
Miriam, of Hyde Park, London. Lyon Benjamin was a scaling-wax maker and the
father of four sons, all of whom came 1o Australia, and two davghters. A daughter,
Harriet (Hart, g.v.), migrated to South Australia in 1848 with her husband Sammel
Hart (g.v.) and five children. David and his brothers, Samuel {q.v.) and Moses
{g-v.), and half-brother Solomon (q.v.) caine to Australia as free migranes. David
arrived in Australia on the Henry on 6 July 1838 with Solomon and *21 cases |of
clothing| and 6 bales of slops’.

David and Solomon Benjamin immediately moved to Launceston and, within
a month, were trading as D Benjamin at Tamar House on the corner of Brisbane
and 5t John streets. Their markering slogan was *Small profits quick returns’. On
Wednesday, 6 March 1839, David Benjamin, ‘of Tamar House, Launceston’,
opened a (branch) store in Collins Streer, Melbourne, and young Solomon was
chosen to open the Melbourne store. David continued the business in Launceston,
moving from Tamar House and opening the Launceston Emporium in Charles
Street, in partnership with George Marks {q.v.). David Benjamin married Esther
Solomon (q.v.), the second daughter of Henry Solomon (q.v.) of Hobart Town, on
15 December 1844} It was the third Jewish marriage in Van Diemen’s Land. In July
1846, Benjamin and Marks sold the Launceston business to A & S. Solomons,
being Aaron Solomons and his son, Saul Solomons (qq.v.)

On 28 October 1840, the brothers David and Solomon Benjamin ‘of
Mclbourne’ bought two plots of land in William’s Town for £325, and an alloc-
ment of land in Portland for £361. In the 1842 Census of Launceston, David
Benjamin was listed as tenant of a shop in Elizabeth Street with his partner and
feltow tenant George Marks.
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COHEN, George Judah 127

and Henry (q.v.). George Cohen married Roserta, the daughter of Samuel and
Rebecca Solomon (qg.v.), in Maitland. He was the first scorekeeper and post-
master of Gunnedah. The AMaitland Mercury reported on 16 September 1849
(echoing the 1848 European uprisings):'S & G Cohen, Lambeth Housc, Scone,
have commenced business in the late Phillip’s Store as wholesale and retail general
store keepers, spirit merchants and flour manufacturers. They intend to revol-
utionise Scone and introduce an entrely new system of government i the
management of their store which the radicals of the district {of which it is hoped
there are many) will pronounce a decided improvement’. It was recorded in the
Land Correspondence that George Cohen bought land in the Scone Districe
during 1850.

George and Rose Cohen had six sons and six daughters. They were: Elizabeth
(25 November 1849—-1909), Jane (1851-1857), Burnetr (1854), Hannah, Samuel,
Caroline (1858), Henry, Reebecca, Albert, Leah (1869-1874), David Echel (1872,
died in infancy), and Percy. George died at Tamworth on 20 October 1889. Rose
died at Maitland on 27 November 1907.

Addithund Meroury, 16 Seprember 1849; Land Correspondence, 2/7827, bought on 16 September 1830

| COHEN, George
b Porr Macquare, TR40—1ga
Singha) 5 children

George was the twin brother of Henry Emanuel Cohen (g v.), son of Abraham
and Sophia Cohen (gq.v.), and grandson of Henry and Elizabeth Cohen {qq.v.). At
the age of sixteen, George was sent to Tamworth to be apprenticed to his uncle
William Cohen. In 1864 George and his twin brother Henry went to Bathurst and
began to trade there as general storekeepers. The business did not flourish (despite
the gold rush) and was closed after two years. In 1866 George Cohen went to
Goulburn, where his older brother Frederick lived. There he met Elizabeth Davis,
the daughrer of Isaac Davis (q v.), who was a hotel keeper in Goulburn, and they
married in the Sydney Synagogue. George Cohen and Elizabeth moved to
Cooma and established a store there. This time his business prospered. Tn 1886 he
retired to live at Port Macquarie.

George and Elizabeth had five children: Ernest (1867) at Dathurst, Arthur
(1868) at Sydney, and, at Cooma, Victor lsaac (1870), Ettie Amelia (1875), and
Linda {died 1955).

' COHEN, George Judah

b. Sydney, 18421937
7 children

George Judab Cohen was born on 27 April 1842 in a home on the edge of the
Tank Stream 1n Sydney. His father, Samuel Cohen (g.v.), had come to Australia in
1834 and was, at one time, the Member for Morpeth in the New South Wales
Legislative Assembly,
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152 COHEN, Nathan

should be lodged immediately. On 3 March 1827 it was reported that Nathan
Cohen had been charged with being out late at night after curfew. He claimed ‘he
had been fitting a coat in Rosemary Lane'. He was doing farm work following his

colonial sentence
Hebart Town Gazette, 20 May 1825, CON 23/), no 387; Spdney Crazene, 3 March (827

COHEN, Nathan

b. Port Macquarie, 1842—1910
5 children.

The son of Abraham and Sophia Cohen {qq.v.) of Port Macquarie, Nathan was
the younger brother of Henry Emanuel Cohen (q.v.), and a brother-in-law of
Benjamin Benjamin (q.v.). Cohen came to Tamworth at the age of sixteen, and
lived there for the next fifty years, beconung its best-known Jewash resident and a
'founding father’ of the town. He was first employed by bis uncle, William Cohen
(q.v.). After the death of his uncle, Nathan managed the business on behalf of his
aunt, but in 1872 established his own business as auctioneer and agent. Narhan
Cohen married two sisters in succession, Esther (born in 1846, and died in child-
birth in December 1880) and Deboraly; they were the daughters of Solomon
Solomon {q.v.} of Eden. The Municipal Council of Tamworth was formed in
1876 and Cohen was an elected member. He was twice mayor of Tamworth,
in 1882 and 1883 High Holyday scrvices were held in his home at ‘Brighton’,
98 Carthage Street, from rhe 1870s.

Cohen was active in many local companies. He was chairman of the Tamworth
Gas and Coke Co He was on the Board of the Centenary Coal and Coke Co.,
and the Green Mount Land and Quarry Co. He helped in the creation of the
Tamworth Hospital, was president of the Cricket Club and a trustee of the Jockey
Club. From 1875 to 1895, Nathan Cohen was in a business partnership with
1David Nathan, who had married Abraham Cohen's daughter Sierlah, and who
was probably the son of Asher (Arthur) Isaac Nathan and Caroline née Cohen
{9q.v.) From 1895 to 1908 Cohen operated the business on his own. The dairy
industry in the Peel Valley was founded by Nathan Cohen, who introduced Jersey
cattle into the district and operated a butter factory.

Cohen died on 15 August 1910 and was buried in the Jewish secnon of
Rookwood Cemetery next to his first wife. His second wife, Deborah, and seven
children survived him. He was described as ‘one of the old Patniarchs of his own
noble race’. Deborah died, aged ninety-nine, on 16 August 1910

Nathan’s children with Esther were Ida (1867-1970), who married her firsc
cousin Victor Isaac Cohen, the son of George Cohen (q.v.) and his wife Elizabeth,
Alice (1860-1955), Percy (1870—~1954), and Cora Rose (1873-1957), who marriced
(Harry) David Cohen of Eden. Deborah had one son, Eliot Tamworth Cohen,
who was born in 1883 and died unmarried at Tamworth on 6 October 1971.

I Porush, "The Jews of Tamworth’, AJJHS, vol 3, no 4 (19500, p 1936 W Newman and L Green, Tamnrorth:
A Picoral Fustory, pp. 33, 74, 232
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~wrEN, Henry Emanuel 129

Mr Hyam, Bootmaker 7 George St”. He also advertised that he sold drawing
pencils. Cohen waus granted one assigned convict in 1831. Cohen manufactured
the prize medals awarded by the Agricultural and Horticuloural Sociery. According
to the Sydney Gazette, they were ‘of massive silver and in point of workimanship are
a very fair display of Colonial craft and do very great merit to the manufacturer’.

In March 1833 he advertised that he was a ‘Goldsmith and Watchmaker of
5 George St, Sydney opening a shop also in Parramatra’. On 18 June 1833, Cohen
was accused by John Foreman of having stolen a watch from him and also owing
him rent. Cohen ‘absconds’ to Van IDiemen’s Land and a reward of /2 was offered
to ‘any person who will seize and detain my watch which Colien has stolen/

Spduey Gazette_ 4 January 1831, 24 May 1832, 18 June 1833; Governors' Duspatches, 1832, ML, A1210, p_ |BS;
Currency Lad, 30 March TH33; Colostral Thes, 7 October 1834 AG, p 179

COHEN, Henry Emanuel

b. Port Macquarie, 1840-1912
2 children.

The son of Abraham and Sophia Cohen (qq.v.), Henry Emanucl Cohen had a
twin brother, George (q.v.), and was the grandson of Henry Simeon Cohen and
Elizabeth Cohen (gq.v.) of Port Macquarie. Henry Emanuel Cohen was born at
Port Macquarie on | December 1840 and came to Sydney with his parents at
the age of ¢ight, The family moved to Goulburn in 1855, When he was sixteen
Henry jeined the firn: of David Cohen and Co, and was sent to West Maitland to
work as a clerk. He remained there for eight years. In 1864 he joined with his
brother George to open a shop 1n Bathurst, trading as ‘Cohen & Co’. The store
closed in June 1867 and Henry left for London in 1868 to study law. On 6 June
1871, Cohen was called to the Bar by the Middle Temple and shortly afterwards
set out for home, surviving a shipwreck off the coast of Ceylon. He was thirty—one
years old when he set up in practice in Sydney, specialising in mercantile cases

Cohen’s father died in 1874, leaving a vacancy on the board of the York Street
Svnagogue, which he was persuaded to fill; he was a member of the board until
his death, thirty-eight years later. Cohen was active 1 synagogue affairs and the
president or chairman of many Jewish philanthropic and educadonal organisadons.
In December 1874, Cohen became the patliamentary representative for West
Maitland, and held thac seat uneil 1880, in succession to Lewis Wolfe Levy (q.v.)
In May 1881, he was appointed Acting Judge of the District Court, returning o
Parliament in 1882, and becoming the Minister of Justice. He was president of the
Arbiration Court and becamie the sccond Jew n the Brinsh Dominions to be
appointed a Judge of the Supreme Court.

Cohen married Sophie Frank, the daughter of Leo Frank of Hanover, Germany,
on 15 July 1884. Sophic had arrived in Australia some twelve months previously
to work as a governess to the son of Sigmond Hoffnung {a.v). Henry and Sophie
had two sons, Edgar Henry (1885) and Cecil Hope (1888). Mr Justice Cohen died
at sea.on 5 January 1912, and was buried in Sydney. Sophie died in Panis v 1943.

1Jaad | Benprun. "Henry Emanue] Cohen”, AJFHS, vol_ 2, no. 10 (1948), p 52417 G. E ). Bengaan. 'Henry
Emanuel Cohen’, in ADY, val 3, p 437
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524  MARKS, Solomon

The General Muster of 1806 listed him as a prisoner assigned to Mr I Blaxcell
(as was Philip Marks, who had also come on the same ship). The Spduey CGazerie
noted, onn 1{) August 1806: Wednesday Solomon Marks was detected breaking into
the dwelling house of James Buttersworth at Partamatta who pursued and over-
taking him knocked him down with a hoe and afterwards beat him so as to pre-
vent his escape and to render it necessary he should be reccived at the hospital”.

On 12 fune 1808 the Sydney Cazette reported that Solomon Marks had been
found guilty of steahing a shirt and was sentenced to seven years transpartation. He
was sent, as o convict labourer, to the Hawkesbury District and was mainined on
the government stores during the first half of 1809. He was listed in the 1811
Genenal Muscer and appeared in the [814 Muster in Sydney as a ‘conviet servant’.
A little later that same year he was on government rations as ‘s sick man' Marks
died at the hospital at Parramatta, aged forey-five, on 17 September 1817, and was
buried by St Philip’s Church in Sydney.

OHSP, 1789=40, casc 491, p, 342, case 255 p 276; Munoees ol the Bench of Magnrrares, 17297 17204, 181+
Muster. ML A 1235, A 1942-2; e Appendix: [iewarns of Dirths, Denhs and Marriages, ML A 2130, p 41

MARKS, Solomon

1816-1852
British Savereign, 1834; Free.
Single; Dealer, school master; 6 children.

Solomon Marks was on the British Sovereign, which arrived ac Port Jackson oz
[8 Seprember 1834 On the same ship was his brother Moses Marks (Moss Marks.
q.v.)- Solomon Marks *of Bungadore’ married Ann {(Hannah) Cohen (q.v.) at cthe
Sydney Synagogue on 3 August 1836, The marriage was perdormed by Michae:
Roose {q v.). Marks was granted an auctioneer’ licence on 15 Qctober 1836. Josep..
Simmons (g.v.) and Marks were in business as auctioncers in King Serect fron.
January 18306 to 3 October 1837. The Syduey General Trade List of 20 March 1830
reported that Solomon & Marks had imported four cases of glass, chree cases o
lamps and two cases of whiting {paint) from London. On 29 June 1837 Mark.
purchased the business of Samuel Onions in King Street. He assured the publi_
that he would continue as an fronmonger, and ‘from the knowledge acquired -
this business in England will give satisfaction’

Solomon Marks was declared insolvent on 19 February 1842 and George Mo-
(g-v.) was authorised to sertle accounts tor the late firm S. Marks & Co. G
10 March 1841 ‘Joseph Simmons and Solomon Marks bankrupts' were able to ps
one shilling in the pound in addition to the five shilhngs paid previously. Mark:
debts toralled £356 and his assews £20. He had a home in Sussex Street

Solomon Marks died, aged thirey-six, on 18 October 1852, and was buried b
the Sydney Synagogue at the Devoushire Street Cemetery. The grave was lat.:
cransferred o Rookwoodl.

The children of Solomon and Hannah Marks were Adolphus (g.v.) (2 Ju...
1837 to 1882), born 1n Sydney, Benjamin Francis {q v.) (born 1846}, Esther (183t



MARTIN, Abraham 525

Elizabeth, who married Sigmond Hoffnung (q.v.) in 1858, and who died in
England in 1914, Sarah Miriam, who died in infancy and was buried on 29 April
1850 in the Devonshire Street Cemetery, and Frank Samuel (c. 1852-1893).

Sydney Guazette, 15 October 1836, 12 January 1837, 29 June 1837, 10 March 1841, 16 April 1842, 15 Seprember
1842; Awstralian, 3 August 1836, 6 Octaber 1837; Land Correspondence 2/7914, 20 Sepeember 1836; Sydney
Genentl Thade Lint, 5§ December 1835, 19 December 1835, 20 February 1836, 29 June 1837,

MARKS, Solomon

Free.
Hawker.

Solomon Marks was granted a hawker’s licence for Launceston in July 1843.
In May 1843 he signed the petition for the establishment of the Launceston
Synagogue and on 19 September signed the petition for the release of the debtor
Isaac Jacobs (g.v.) from the Launceston Gaol.

CO 280/157; Hobart Tonm Courier, 14 July, 19 September 1643,

| MARKS, Solomon Lyon
| b. London, 18271875

1846; Free.

Single.

The seventh child of Frances (née Levey) and Lyon Marks, Solomon Lyon Marks
was born on 4 April 1827 and arrived in Australia in 1846, entering into partner-
ship at the Liverpool Mart, Hindley Street, Adelaide, with his brother Morris
Lyon Marks (q.v.). On 13 February 1850 he married Esther Joshua {(g.v.), the
second daughter of Michael Joshua (q.v.} and Sarah (née Solomon) of Glenelg,
South Australia. They had four children, all of whom dred young. Lyon Morris
Marks (1851), born at Port Adelaide, died in Melbourne in 1860. Sarah Frances
Marks (1855), born in Melbourne, died there in 1860. Herbert Leicester Marks
(1857) and Florence Mary (1859} were also born in Melbourne. Florence died at
the age of two.

The grave of Solomon Lyon Marks is in the Cooktown Cemetery, Queens-
land, and is the only grave there with a Hebrew inseription. Marks died in 1875.
Marks had been a successfil merchant in Cooktown and donated a large portion
of the costs of the town’s first public hall.

Pritchard [ndex.

' MARTIN, Abraham

Free.

Abraham Martin signed the petition for the Launceston Synagogue on 20 May
1843. He donated £2 to the Launceston Synagogue building appeal in 1844.
CO 280/157; Lanmceston Examniner, 29 June 1844,




FURUTS o Hapog ASomuusn ¥ Apvien o BETEA

‘54

|I::I-".:$."i;T
;ﬁ iy FAMILY GROUP CHART Compiled by: Fveew fSowns Date: Wvé Joo7 iD Number:
%;1 Husband: (OMEAN  SQmubL fomais Wife: Aot mrr Ly 24 /22/29@-'27"’ )
E Birth Date: e Place: LvieoN O Birth Date: Place: “
I Baptism Date: Place: Baplism Date: Place:
o' - -
oY Marriage Date: e gao,, Meio Place: Sypvess Marriage Date: Place:
i Death Date: /¢ gg Place: Death Date: Place:
% Burial Date: /§5% Place: Burial Date: Place: -
D Other partners: wid/div/sep Cther partners: B wid/divisep
S Occupation: Occupation:
§ Father: LONE~N  HEn@s s sorsd ] Father:
o (Mother: S A ON S Ll ZREETH Molher:
g Other: Olher:
Sex Children Wihan Where Married to Whgn Whe_re W!'ban .Where
M/F Earn . Born AT2E ol STE ?Marrled Married ied Died/Buried
- LS o Ivoe
17 | ARanveSS WPy o fapperr | Jogomi Agrsen/Sreis  s63| Meiggvens | P07 =
2 F | g mrran A o ’ N o arowers Fve X8 A F o -#l.g;n-. o sl o i i
hf-: .5-_ Fys | 7 - - a0 S (YA AICEOOITAE o o tQE | Bre e eyl 3
3 P Vo ik SREE| " . BT - 3 N
" A -
5— FFG‘M_H_ — S I— 'f{{? - .“ 1 — ) — = - Fi."ﬂ' T_ ."?I :h. mm:ﬂrﬁﬂf :r""" |IM-_.
HEVES [(Annd T ok A e |Siwreon Franwkée | SPES | prersovnn€ |5 3 1902 | Qusuby  spsw Haowe
C i Ea;.ﬁmsaum_] are B
167~ | Hangs ( R68E ccn  /Eee L AL U BRUSA7 i o YET2 ol ds
o "H:"‘l"r { F "fl:: .
75| Agwrrd fRosss | T Dy, O IBRANT by sdovane | T TRy | Hllﬁ?&a_jﬁl 73 34
BAT | Alvenr Hep| Stowe - i
Ao oy fuahaw, — | —1— -
S#rorag §oporros - = -
DR@rN '/a-u-""
R 5 Burial Record 7 Will/Probata 9 Newspaper Notice 11 Shipping Record 13 Family Records 15
o | |2 Buminuea .tish Register 6 Monumenlal Inscription 8 Obftuary 101GI 12 Census/Muslars 14 16

; Srliiom vie

— vA s £r
133vE 1va~ 1392 /17 S o i

pree 1949 ReES



160 COHEN, Samuel Henry

escape once again and his sentence was extended by a period of three years, with
six months in hard labour in chains. This was found to be ‘illegal’ as he was already
serving a sentence. However, on 25 Ocrober, after another attempted escape,
the Lieutenant Governor confirmed that the length of his sentence should be
extended. On 11 March 1839 Cohen was working with the road party when
he received six wecks hard labour for gambling. On 6 November Cohen was
reported for idleness and obscenc language while serving as a member of the
Campbell Town Road Party. A ticket of leave was issued on 14 Qctober 1841 and
a conditional pardon on 23 September 1845, as he was ‘four years clear of offence
and will be free by servimude 1n ten months'.

CON 32/2 Supplementary Volunwe, p 380: CON 3177, no 1862, CON 14/4, no 1862; CON 18/6; HOY W/58,
p 32; Hobarr Tonar Conrier, 2 March 1838; CI* 384,

| COHEN, Samuel Henry

| b. Landon, 18211899
Brothers, 1833; Free.
Single; & children

The eldest son of Henry Simeon Cohen and Elizabeth Cohen (qq.v.) of Port
Macquaric and Sydney, Samuel Henry Cohen came out on the Brothers with his
mother and siblings, arriving on 21 December 1833, The family had followed their
father, who was an assigned convict, to Port Macquarie. Samuel Henry Cohen
married Eliza Hyam on 8 April 1840 in Sydney. Cohen worked briefly as an
auctioneer at Bridge Street, but on 4 January 1842 the Sydney Free Press and Com-
mercial_Journal reported that the auctionecr, Samuel Henry Cohen of Campbell-
town, had moved to Port Macquarie and was declared bankrupt and had been
forced to surrender properties in Port Macquarie, Mudgee and Scone. His debts
amounted to £778 and his assets £709. The Sydney Moruing Herald reported on
1 May 1855 thart claims of ,£,2703 12s 7d had been presented against his estace

The Sydney Synagogue Birth Book registered that Agnes was named on 9 June
1849 (parents living at Port Macquaric) and Rosetta was named on 1 June 1851.

Sainuel Cohen began work with the family-owned intracolonial orading vessel
Demi, which he renamed the Elizabeth Colien, and later the schooner Eliza
(named 1n honour of his wife}. Samuel Henry Cohen moved to Melbourne,
where he became one of the official assignees of the Insolvency Court and in the
I880s served as a Justice of the Peace.

The children of Samuel Henry and Eliza were Frances (1841-1917), born ac
Port Macquarie, married Joseph Kaczenstein; Charlette (1843), born at Porr
Macquarie, married her first cousin, Adoiphus Marks (q.v.); Sophia (1845-1905);
Sarah (1B47),at Port Macquaric; Agnes (Annc) (1849), at Port Macquarie, married
Simeon Frankel (son of Jacob Frankel and Miriam, née Moses) in 1863; Agnes-
Rebecca (1849-1892), married the Rev. Elias Blaubaum of St Kilda Hebrew
Congregation in 1877; Rosetta (1851), married David Braham; and Henry (1865),
in Sydney.

Syilney Morwmyg Herald 8 Aprit 1840, 10 May 1842, Spduey Free Press and Connvercial_journal, 4 January 1842
Avistralian, 29 Scprember 1844
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COHEN, Edward Aaron 121

David and Juha Cohen had five sons and three daughters. They returned to
England in 1857, and remained in close contact with the family business, David
died on 12 March 1902,

Austealin, 20 November 1841; Spdiey Morning Herld, 16 September 1842; Land Correspondence 2/7827 on
26 Seprerber 1849

. C_OH EN, Edward

Edward and Sarah Cohen of West Maitland registered the birth of their son,
Nathan, in 1846.

. COHEN, Edward Aaron

b. London, 18221877
Brothers, 1833; Free
Single; 8 chitdren.

Edward was the second son and fifth child of Henry Simeon and Elizabeth Cohen
(qq.v.). When his father was deported to Aunstralia on the Lioyds in 1833, Edward
and nine of his siblings followed with Edwards mother. As a very young man
Edward Cohen established auction rooms at Port Macquarie, where his father
had been sent as an assigned convict servant. The Australian of 28 January 1841
announced his annual sale of stock at his auction rooms. In Sydney, Edward man-
aged his father’s grocery store at 512 George Street and moved to Melbourne
n 1842

Edward Cohen became a partner of the emancipist Benjamin Francis (q.v.),
and rogether they ran an auctioneering firm until the partnership was dissolved in
1854. After an eight-month stay in Sydney, Cohen returned to Melbourne where
he joined the auctioneering firm of his brother Samuel Henry Cohen (q.v.) and
Alexander Fraser. On 1 September 1847 Edward Aaron Cohen 'of Sydney’ married
Rebecca, the eldest child of Moses Bemjamin (q.v.). Tt was the third Jewish
wedding in Melbourne. The witnesses were Solomon Benjamin (q.v.), David
Benjamin {q.v.) and [saac Hart (q.v.).

Cohen served as president of the Melbourne Hebrew Congregation in 1854
and in 1863. He was actively involved in the congregation and Jewish community
affairs throughout his life and attempted to preserve the secular character of the
public education system and its textbooks

Edward Cohen was elected a city councillor in 1860, an aldermian in 1865, and
mayor of Melbourne for 1862 to 1863. In 1864 Cohen joined forces with his
brother-in-law Benjamin Benjamin {(q.v.) (they werc brothers-in-law twice over
for each had married a sister of the other). Together they set up in business to act
as tea importers and general commission agents. They maintained the business
originally occupied by the partnership of Moses and Benjamin Benjamin at
36 Collins Street. Together they bought a large sheep station known as ‘Canally’.
(Benjamin Benjamin named his mansion in Fast Melbourne ‘Canally’). Cohen
was elected to the Legishtive Assembly for East Melbourne, serving from 1861
to 1865; he was elecred again in 1868 and served until his death in 1877. He was



122 COHEN, Edward Daniel (Daniel COHEN)

the second Jew to be elected to the Victorian Padiament. Cohen was honorary
treasurer of the Melbourne Hospital and was involved in many charities. He
served as Commissioner for Trade and Customs (1869-70, and 1872-74). He was
a governor of the Colonial Bank of Victoria and director of the Australasian
Insurance Company. Cohen died at East Melbourne on 13 April 1877 after a long
illness, leaving an estate of £29 000. His funeral was one of the largest ever seen in
the colony.

His children were Nathan Edward Cohen (26 June 1848 to 1867), born in
Sydney, Benjamin, Annie (Anne), Elizabeth (1852-1926), Henry (1854), Kate
{1859), Miriam and Arthur Isaac (1864).

Rodney Benjamin, “Sir Benjamin Benjomin', AJJHS, vol 6, no. 3 {1967), p. 1351; G Solomon, ‘Benjamin
Benjamin', in ADB, vol. 3, p. 436(; B. Falk, Ne Otlter Home, H. L. Rubinstein, The Jaws in Vicioria, p. 471

| COHEN, Edward Daniel (Daniel COHEN)
b Birmingham, 1803-1847

| Burreil (1), 1830; Convict; Sentenced to life, Liverpool Borough Session, 1830.
Single; Jeweller; Height: 17 cm; 4 children,

Darlz sallow complexion, darle brown hair, frazel eyes, small scar between eyebrows, jew. Could read
and write. BEdward Daniel Cohen was the brother of Mosely M. Cohen {g,v). Their father, Simeon,
was a goldsmiith in Birmingham. Edvward Daniel had been in prison before, serving a six-month sen-
terce. He was tried on 18 January 1830 and sentenced to be transported for stealing a watch case.
The convict transport ship Burrefl arrived in New South Wales on 19 December
1830. Trouble began when Cohen was to become an assigned secvant to the
Australian Agricultural Company and was bartered for two other convicts by
Moses Brown (q.v.), who then set him up in business as a watchmaker,

Cohen’s brother Mosely Moss Cohen then paid Brown £25 to take over his
brother’s assignment. The government intervened and Edward Daniel Cohen was
put on trial for being party to an illegal transacnon. He wrote to the authorities
on 3 September 1832 asking to be transferred to the supervision of his brother,
‘Mr Moses Cohen’ The request was refused and he was put on the Phoenix hulk
on 7 September 1832, where his behaviour was described as ‘indifferent’, On
20 September the Colonial Secretary received a letter from the Sheriff's Office
asking that Cohen, ‘now on board the hulk’, be granted the ‘indulgence that he
asks for’. This concerned ‘an urgent matter essentally important to myself and my
brother which absolutely requires my attention on shore for a few hours'. Mosley
M. Cohen had also contributed to this plea, on 10 September 1832, stating ‘T am
urged as much by the feelings of a brother as by pecuniary considerations’. The
visit on shore was ‘allowed’. Daniel Cohen volunteered to become an overseer
of convicts at Port Macquarie, and was sent there on 4 December 1832. His
behaviour there was ‘good’ and in June 1833 he was officially appointed ‘special
constable’.

On 25 August 1833 Cohen was sent back to the Phoenix hulk to be a witness
for the prosecution in the case Rex v Eustace. He was subsequently returned to Port
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COHEN, Phillip Joseph 153

COHEN, Philip

b. London, 1825-1898
Brothers, 1833; Free.
13 children

Philip Cohen was the third son of Henry and Elizabeth Cohen (gq.v.), and
arrived 1n New South Wales with his mother and nine siblings in December
1833, His father was at Port Macquarie as an assigned convict servant,

Philip Cohen sec up a business in Armidale, New South Wales. The Maitland
Merciry advertised the sale of a thoroughbred horse,‘Alhambro’, owned by Cohen.
He was listed as a seat holder in the Sydney Synagogue in 1845. On 5 Febroary
1851, Miss Jessie Sclomon, the daughter of the laze BBenjamin Solomon (q.v.) of
Hobart Town, married Philip Cohen of Armidale, New Souch Wales, at the home
of David Benjamin, Eastern Hill, Melbourne. It was Vicroria’s tenth Jewish
wedding, Jessie (c. 1833—1916) was nineteen years old.

Philip Cohen was the first licensee of the Pier Hotel, Manly, and heild the
licence from 1856 to 1860. From 1861 to 1878 the family lived in Launceston
and in Melbourne. From 1880 to 1884 Cochen was the licensee of the Steyne
Hotcl, Manly. Philip had evidently worked wich his brother, Edward Aaron
Cohen (q.v), from 1864 to 1877, returning to New South Wales following
Edward’s death. He had an interest in anthropology and ichthyology and pub-
lished a study, The Mariuc Fish and Fisheries of New South Whaies, Past and Present, in
their Commercial Aspect (1892), and Early Day Aborigines (1894)

Philip and Jessie had thirtcen children: Fanny {c. 1852), Esther (1854), Sarah
(1856-1930), Benjarmun Henry (1858—1899), Joseph (c. 1859-1921), Arthur (1862),
Elhzabeth Annie (1862), Amy (1864—1885), Flora Sophia (1866—1926), Nathan
Edward (1868), Ernest (1870-1876), Willlam (1871-1923), and Albert {1877
1878). Philip died at Manly on 6 February 1898. He was a 'retired oyster mer-
chant’_ Jessie died on 15 July 1916 at the age of eighty-rwo
Habari Town Clironiete, 26 February 1851, Archives of the Australian Jewish Flistorieal Soctety, Sydiey

COH EN, Phillip joseph

b. Cambridge, 18021864
Alexander Henry, 1828, Free.
Single; Dealer; 13 children

The stepbrother of Simeon Joseph Cohen {q.v.)} and brother of Henry Joseph
Cohen (q.v.), P.J. Cohen was born in Cambridge, the son of a Jewish pedlar.
Before he left England he spent some months at the office of the Betr Din and
took with him a certificate from Chief Rabbi Solomon Hirschell, which allowed
him to conduct marriages and grant Jewish divorces. He arrived on 17 May 1828
on the brig Alexander Henry, with Lawrence Joseph Spyer (q.v.).

The Sydney Gazette (19 May 1828) said 1t was believed that P J. Cohen had
travelled to Australia under the ‘auspices’ of Messrs Rothschild. Cohen promptly
denied the rumour. At the end of July the firm of Cohen and Spyer had taken over



0| THBQUeD o Leog ABomeuan g Aipvieq o

1ebeuppy yoirasay Ai0)siy Afuiey E

£l

AP |

v FAMILY GROUP CHART Compiled by: 7& e Loy e Date: ID Number
Husband: ONGN Fes& ay Wife: K m Ao
Birth Date: Place: Birth Date: Place:
Baptism Date: Place: Baptism Date; Place;
Marriage Date: 7 pppr /ceny  Place: Qqaﬂéfﬂ”f’{% g | Marriage Date: Place:
Death Date: /993  Place:  Sup go ”SM/VJ-;-J' AT ~ Death Date: Place:
Burial Date; /ge@z Place: Burial Dﬂe: Place;
Olher partners: wid/div/sep Other pariners: wid/divisep
Occupation: Occupation:
T - == =
Father: LONE~ HENRSY Sirreon~ B Father: AT 7 i ER g 150 J5OF
Mother: Sistasam € L IQAEE T Mother  Apngs-  puoess Lonoon Soeiand
Other: Other:
Sex Children W|.IE!rI | 'h'{har-:*. Marred to When Whe-::e When Where
M/F Bom Bam Marriga Marriad Digg Died/Buried
AV /F53 ﬂ'_.?iw'—;:":r*f AL AT #2 SR | fookweek A7 f
= ot fe ..
2 Y | ez IFSE| Srnms WP
1 — | S AR _
3 Ve es LEvive Vot ro. e dmvvesiro- | - o i
T ——— W
s V| Lowmerr Meyse Gy, 57 2P0 | ppnia £t | 19¥9 | Drago vs .4 538 |Ridgiesn orr &
- g 7,
5 /| froases 6. 959 Mosai ¥ | | rese | pmvmeenr sine
: A =
6 /Y | Aoosmsint | JJone /FE3 e —— V- A R i SYomer AT /3
T | fRAw X S Dl N Rt Tod |
- 2
ol o d P20 (= D C |
E —_—
1 - i
"
12 _ =
13 =
Sources
1 BOM Cerlificate 3 ECR 5 Burial Record 7 WillProbate 9 Newspaper Nolice 11 Shipping Record 13Farily Recards 15
2 BOM Index 4 Parish Registar & Monumental Inscription 8 Obituary 101Gl 12 Cansus/Musters 14 16




140 COHEN, Joseph

'COHEN, Joseph

b. Landon, 1826-1893
Brothers, 1833; Free.
Single; 8 children.

Joseph was the fourth son of Henry Simeon Cohen and Elizabeth Cohen (qq.v.),
and came out with his mother and siblings in December 1833.

Joseph Cohen married Mary Harr at the Sydney Synagogue on 2 October
1850. Mary Hart was the sixth daughter of Asher and Phoebe Hare (qq.v.) of
Sydney. At that time Joseph was living at Armidale, New England, in New South
Wales. The couple settled in Armidale and purchased town lots ac Tamworth.

In 1857 Joseph Cohen was appointed a Justice of the Peace in Launceston and
became an alderman of the city. His business was known as Cohen Bros,
Auctioneers. He was a member of the Executive Comumictee of the Launceston
Bank of Savings and an officer in the Launceston Artillery Corps. He served as
president of the Launceston Synagogue. He was elected to the Tasmanian House
of Assembly for Launceston in 1860. At that time he was the accupier of a house
and store in York Street owned by Asher (Arthur) Isaac Nathan {g.v.), who was his
brother-in-law.

Joseph and Mary Coben were the parents of Nuthan (1R52-1553), Henry
(1853), James Lewss (B Ocwober 1854), bom 2t Launcmron, Edaand Pl eyt
{21 November 16837), ar Lanneeseon, Florence (% Aot 1859, a¢ Flobar, Adolpbus
John [1863-1865), Frank {¥868) ut Sydney, and Joseph (died in Svdney m 1R93),

COHEN, )Joseph Edward

b. London, 18021354
England, 1832; Convict; Sentenced to life, Old Bailey, 1831.
Widower; Upholsterer; Height: 177 em; 1 child (in England).

Dare complexion, dark brown hair and whiskers, long face, high forehead, dark hazel eyes, straight long
nose, frge rornd chin. Colien'’s wife had died white lie was imprisoned on the hulk serving a previous
sentenice for stealing a watclr. This time it was alleged he brokv into the home of Esther Collison, who
kept the White Hart public honse on Ratcliff Highway. Colien was defended int court by a barrister
and initially sentenced to death. His belaviour in gaof in England was *had",

Joseph Edward Cohen arrived in Hobart Town on 19 July 1832 to begin his
pertod of probation. On 4 February 1834, while assigned to Mr Stoneham, he was
found guilty of being absent without leave, and was given a month in prison with
a recommendation to do hard labour with the Launceston Chain Gang. On
23 September 1834 he was ‘out after hours’ and in a public house and was repri-
manded. On 20 February 1837, when he was the servant of Mr Bell, he was given
fourteen days hard labour in chains for being absent without leave and four days
in the cells on bread and water. On 20 May 1837 he was back in the cells for
seven days for having been insolent to Mr Bell. On 15 November he was not
only absent without leave but also insolent to his master and given seven nights in
the cells and ordered to do his normal work by day. On 12 December 1837, and
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NATHAN, Asher Isaac {Arthur Isaac) 605§

: recetved hifty lashes for threatening to strike the overseer of the penitentiary and
«asing’ his fellow prisoners. On 17 March 1827 he abused Constable Henry
-ty and received a further fifty lashes On 27 October he was given fifty lashes
= ‘barking trees” and on 30 May 1828 a further fifty lashes for bemng drunk,
-ene from his work party and insolent to a police officer.
In April 1835 Nathan spent two hours in the stocks for being “out after hours’.
November 1835, while working with the Public Works, he rcfused to assist
-mmissioner Allwort, using indecent language to do so, and was sentenced to
-ive months with the Second Road Party at Westbury. On 11 January 1837 his
olence, while an assigned servant to Mr Kent, earned him a sentence of twao
~1chs hard labour in chains at Reibey’s Ford On 11 March 1837 he was found
_aunceston without a pass and his sentence was extended by three months, Part
-his punishment was due to his ‘disorderly and violent conduct before the
re Magstrate’ On 24 October 1837 he was found drunk and sent to join the
-tands Chain Gang Qn 26 Ocrober, while a watchman with the Public Works
~artment, he was charged with stealing a valise. The case was unproven but he
- dismissed and returned to the road party.
“Jarhan recerved his ricket of leave on 9 Seprember 1840 and a conditional
~fon on 27 Scprember 1843, ‘having shown definite proof of reformation’
arding to the officral list of Conditional Pardons in 1844 Sadly, on 30 January
-+ he was charged in Launceston with larceny and acquitted on a rechnicality.
“urd—class pardon was grainted on 19 January 1847, Abraham Nathan’s name
zared on the Launceston Synagogue petinion of 20 May 1843,

31729 CON 3271 Hobart fown Conarer, 11 Sepremiber THAD, 6 Octlaber 1843; Launcescon Police Book,
62, CON 18/0 no 338; CP 730 HO 10/58, p 296

““ATHAN, Asher Isaac (Arthur Isaac)

-ondon, 18141863
Ja5 Frea.
zle; 7 children

~son of Nathan Lyon Nathan {q.v.) and Sarah Nathan, Asher Isaac was the twin
“1er of Rachel Nathan (q.v.), who married Samuel Cohen {q.v.), and brother
_ouls Nathan {g.v.), David Nathan (q.v.), and Mrs Rosecta Joseph (RRosetra
TLan, vy,
#rthur lsaac Nathan signed the petition for the establishment of a Launceston
—-goguc on 20 May 1843 In September he also signed a pention asking for the
-3¢ from gaol of Isaac Jacobs {g.v.). On 29 June 1844 he donated /50 to the
iceston Synagogue building appeal. In 1845 he officiated at the wedding of
- Aaron and 11 1853 at the last Jewish wedding 11 Launceston, Though he was
-1 m Launceston he was one of the members of the Hobart-based Tasmanian
~=ew Bencvolent Society at 1ts founding in 1847 On 23 August 1843, at the
sogne in Sydney, Arthur [saac Nathan married Caroline Cohen {(q.v) of
“sourne, the daughter of Henry Cohen (g v.) of Port Macquarie.
Zrthur and Caraline Nachan were the parents of Lewis Arthur (30 May 1844),
- in Launceston, who would marry his cousin Stella, the daughter of Jaccb



606 NATHAN, Benjamin [WILLARD)

Joscph of Wellington. Lewis was active in the firmi of L.1). Nathan & Co., founded
by his uncle David. Walter [saac Nathan was born in Launceston, went to Wellington,
New Zealand, where he jomed his cousin Jacob Joseph’s business. Their other
children were Arthur Hyam Nathan (born 2 May 1847), David (15 May 1849),
Edward (25 January 1851), Sarah {29 May 1853}, and Sidney Jacob Narthan, the
sixth son, whe was born in Sydney m 1860 and married Frances Baume

Arthur Isaae Nathan, 'late of Launceston Tasmania’, died in England aged forry-
nine on 7 August 1863, He had lived ar 28 Tavistock Square, and was buried at the
West Ham Jewish Cemetery in Lendon. Caroline died in England in Marclh 1881.

| NATHAN, Benjamin {WILLARD)

| b, London
Isabelta | (1), 1818; Convict; Sentenced ta 7 years, London, 1817
| Married; Artist and dentist; Height: 147 cm.

Sickly pafe complexion, beowr haty, brown eyes, Benjamin Willard alias Nathaw was convicied for
srealing theee beds and their bolsters, three quarts of ale awil one cask from a public hewse at Tover
il Willard and Wis rife tived wext door and he was said to own a ‘wedicine shop’ He wos sen-
tenced at Middlesex on 3 Decemtber [817,

Benjamin Nathan arrived i New South Wales on 14 September 1818. The
Colonial Secretary’s oflice accepted Nathan's alias of “Willard' as his surname On
22 September 1818 he was aimong the list of prisoners sent to be assigned in
Parramatea, On 1 February 1819 it was decided to send lim to the penal sectle-
ment at Newcastle and, in March 1820, he was punished av Newecastle. On
4 January 1821 he petitioned for a mitigation of his sentence, He was ‘of Windsor’
and wrote: “The undersigned humbly begs leave to remind your Excellency of
the promises you were pleased to make to me of grannng my Liberty through the
medium of Mr Cex [P [ have applied to that gentdeman and he refuses to
comply’. On 6 February 1822 he was mansported to Newcastle again {on the
Lilizabedr Henrtetfa). On 15 February 1823 Willard was removed from Newcastle
and sent to Port Macquarie on the Safly. A certificate of freedom was 1ssued on
3 December 1824,

CRSPIBL7 case 153 C5 471718 . LO0; /1863 p 110, CS Copics of Letters Senc Within the Colony, 1821,
473504, p 403 Prinapal Supenineendent of Conviess, Registers of Ceraficates of Freedon, 182323, 003729352,
n 44423 S COplﬁ ol Leerers Sent Witlan the Coluuy, 1818-19_ 473499, PP 57,2095 OS5 C opies ol Leters m
Vort Macgquane, lune-October 1825, 4/3864, p 303

| b. London, 1815—1871
Caroline, 1832; Free
| Single; Dealer; 10 children,

Bertram Nathan arrived in Hobart Town on 12 December 1832 He was the son
of Nathaniel Nathan, merchant of London, and Elizabeth {née Levy). His full
legal name was ‘Isaacar Bertram Nathan’

Bertram Nathan was seventeen years old when he arrived in New South Wales
as a imgrant on 2 January 1832. He was listed as giving £5 to the building fund of

"
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144 COHEN, Lewis

On 27 July 1843 an embittered Cohen charged his wife with bigamy. While
Cohen was in prison, Rachael had formed a relationship with a musician named
Rolfe who lived in Pitt Streer, Sydney. She had left Hobart Town and, on
23 August 1842, had marnied Mr Rolfe. Cohen promptly arrived in Sydney,
accepted £20 o keep quiet about her status, and then, changing his mind, charged
her with bigamy, stating that he would produce witnesses who had been at their
own wedding in the Great Synagogue in London (Australasian Chronicle, 22 July
1843). On 4 June 1844 Cohen was still assigned o the Public Works Department
when he was found to have nineteen shillings and eleven pence ‘improperdy in his
possession’. The money was confiscated.

Surprisingly, Cohen was persuaded to run for public office in the Launceston
municipal elections of 1863. He owned a drapery and dry goods store and was
licensed as an auctioneer. The Launceston Examiner wrote of his 'long connecdon
with the town, active business habit, and the general respect in which you are held
by the burgesses’. Cohen was elected and served as an alderman for a year. In his
essay in A Few from Afar, Stefan Petrow writes ‘He rarely spoke during municipal
debates and mostly seconded the motions of other aldermen. Was he reticent to
talk about issues of which he had linle knowledge, or was he a duck out of warer,
unhappy with being exposed to the public spoight? The latter seems more likely’,

Lewis Cohen was more comfortable within the small Launceston Jewish com-
munity and served as president of the congregation from 1864 10 1871 (when the
synagogue closed its doors and sent its scrolls and items of religious value to the
congregation in Hobart)

CON 3171 no.1656; CON 32/1 no 1636; Hehert Torem Colonist, 10 December 1833; Tasmawiar and Avwstral-
Asfane Renar, Januvary 183, CF 1848 oo 38, Awsralasion Chawicle, 22 July 1843; Lannceston  Exandner,

3 December 1863, 29 November 186+ Stefan Perrow.Fearlens and Independent Jews Elected 10 Public Office
n Tsmania 1833-1902°, in P Elias and A_ Elias (cts). A Few from Afar.p 103

COHEN, Lewis

b. London, 1831-1903
Brothers, 1833; Free.
Single; Dealer; 12 children.

Lewis Cohen came out to Van Diemen’s Land with his mother, Elizabeth Cohen
(q.v.), and nine siblings, to join his father Henry Simeon Cohen (q.v.), an assigned
convict living in Port Macquarie.

Lewis Cohen married Mary Frankel on 22 March 1854, She was the eldest
daughter of Jacob and Miriam Frankel (gq.v.)- The family settled in Launceston
and was there from 1856 to 1874. Ten of their twelve children were born there,
Lewis Cohen & Co owned an aucton mart and store 1n York Street, Launceston.
The family moved to Sydney in 1875.

The children of Lewis and Mary were Sarah (1855), Fanny (11 August 1856),
Sophia (1858), Minnie (15 January 1860), Albert Henry (1862), Nathan Sidney
(10 December 1863}, Amy Louise (11 Septetnber 1865), Edward George (1 July
1867), Elizabeth Maud (1869), Harry Percival (1871), William Lawrence (1874),
and Estella Myra (1876). *

cC
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764 SOLOMON, Samuel (SOLOMONS)

SOLOMON, Samuel (SOLOMONS)

b. Essex, 17741857
Mangles {6}, 1833; Convict; Sentenced to life, Old Bailey, 1832
Married; Urmbvella-maker and salesman; Height: 163 cm; & children.

Dark, soffow complexion, black hair, dark chestunr eyes. A Jew Whiskers joiring wnder ciin and
inrning prey. Lost one front roorle in s upper jmie He could read and write, Samucl Solontosn was
the son of Moses Sofonion of London, and a consiv of Mis (Jacob) Joscplison (Emma_Josephson, g.11)

Sumitel 1was convicted at the Oid Bailey on 6 Sepicndber 1832 of siealing a bracket dlock, valued
ai 10 shillings, and other louschold goods from a coffee honse in Corninilt. In Tis own defonce
Solomon said: ‘I ant quiite invecent of kaonsding it to be sfolen. I bought it off Brown and it was in
pawn at Mr Walter’s in Aldersgate Street’. He tofd the cotirt that he had eight children and that he
fad lived in the East Lud for twenty years. He was known as ‘Honest Spnnel or the Honest Jra’
Nine wirnesses were brought it to the Old Bailey in order to tesiify (o Iiis good characier. His age was
given as fifty
Samuel Solomon was initially placed on the Ploeni hulk on arrival in Sydney, being
admitted on 7 May 1833, and then sent to the Hyde Park Barracks. On 3 Sep-
tember 1835 he was senr on to Port Macquarie. His behaviour had been ‘good’.

On 3 September 1835 Rebecca Solomon (née Moss) (q.v), who had arrived
on the Britomart, petitioned the Governor on behalf of her husband, asking chat
he be assigned to her. He was a prisoner serving a life sentence. He had been an
umbrella-maker and claimed to be a cook. He was assigned to Major Innes J1* ac
Port Macquarie and was a ‘special’ there. She had nine children and had come free
on the Britomart in February 1835. She had believed that her husband would be
assigned to her when she arrived, and now found herself destitute: ‘Her miscries
have again thrown her upon the hands of benevolent persons who knew her
character and her family in England previous to the disastrous circumstance’
Major Innes testified that Solomon’s behaviour had been ‘very good'. Joseph
B. Montefiore (g.v.) asked, on her behalf, that Samuel be assigned to her becausc
Rebecca was in need of help, ‘her children being of too tender an age to con-
tribute m any way towards their subsistence’. Montefiore added: ‘| believe him
[Samuel] to be a very industrious and respectable man’. Governor Bourke replied
that Solomon would have to comply with the law, and that he had only served
two years

Samuel ‘Solomons’ was charged at the Bathurst Police Magistrates Court on
17 June 1840 with receiving stolen property, and was returned to ‘the service of
the government’. A ticket of leave was issued in Sydney on 15 July 1842 and a
conditional pardon was granted on 1 July 1843 (no 224).

Solomoen was a seat holder in the York Street Synagogue in 1845, The family
followed Samuel Solomon into the bush to the store that he had established at
'‘Reid’s’ or ‘Reed’s Flats', which was later named Bunyan, and was eight kilometres
from the site of Cooma. The presence of the Solomon and Shannon famihies
meant that the locals called the tiny setlement ‘Jews' Flat’. Samuel Solomon
bought the hotel the Squatters’ Arms, established by Abraham Moses (q v.), and
developed a general store beside the public house that was managed by Samuel’s
son, Harry Solomon (Henry Solomon, q.v). Solomon contnued in business



SOLOMON, Samuel 768

at Jews’ Flat unal September 1854, when the properties were transferred to his
son Maurice (Morrice) Solomon (q.v.). Solomon moved to Sydney, but held an
auctioneer’s licence for the District of Cooma until 1858,

Solomon'’s children were Henry (Harry) (1816), who came to Australia after the
rest of the family, Elizabeth (1820) (q.v.), Solomon (called Saul on the ships
indent) (1822) (q.v.), Emma (1824), Julia (1826} (q.v.), Anna (1828), Maurice
(Morrice) (1829), Rosetta (1831), Charles (1833) (q.v.), and Sarah (1836), who
was born in Sydney.

Samuel Solomon was buried by the Sydney Synagogue on 24 October 1857, at
the age of eighty-two. Rebecca died on 21 August 1864

OBSP, 1H30-31, case 1824, pp 758-% Mioctx (hulk) Enmanee Book 4/6282, no. 370; Peiition 35/7189,
3 Scptember 1833: Governors’ Despatches, 30 August 1843, A1293-4/3208, p. 134; Syducy Tintes, 17 Seprember
1836; HO 10/53; family research by Dinah Harvey, Sydncy.

SOLOMON, Samuel

b Sheerness, 17761864
Free.
Married; 1 child.

Samuel was the brother of Judah Solomon (g.v), Joseph Solomon (g.v.}, Henry
{q v} and Isaac Solomon, and the father of Joseph (‘Johmny’) (g.v.), who was a
proneer settler of Melbourne. Samuel Solomon was buried by the Hobart
Synagogue on 9 March 1864 at the age of eighty-eight

' SOLOMON, Samuel

b. Norwich, 1784—18%
Admiral Gambier {2}, 1813; Convict; Sentenced to 14 years, Old Bailey, 1310.
Single; Height: 152 cm; 1 child.

Samitel Solomon was a pickpocket whe stole a watcl (valed at £6) from a passerby at the New Inn,
Shoreditch: "He snatched the watch e of iy fob’. Solomon was caught after a seuffle. He daimed, in
his ownr defence, that e was ‘very much in liquor’ He was initially sentenced at the Ofd Bailey on
11 Aprit 1810 to transportation for life. He had broum hair, satfote complexion aud light hazef eyes.
Samuel Selomon arrived in New South Wales in Scptember 1811 and was soon
sent on to Van Diemen’s Land on the Ruby, arriving on 19 February 1812. By
2 October 1813 he appeared in the records of Van Diemen’s Land when he was
convicted of being drunk and disorderly and was placed in the gaol road gang. On
8 March 1814 he was sentenced to 100 lashes for breaking the doors and windows
of Mrs Winch’s house. Over the next ten years Solomon was punished rwelve
times for offences involving drunkenness, insolence and verbal abuse. As a conse-
quence it was recorded that he received 225 lashes, several months in irons and
a period sitting in the stocks. His police record ended on 30 March 1824 when
he was sentenced, once again, to 100 lashes for ‘abusing Constables Marr and
B. Trainer on Saturday last and endeavoured to cause a Mob to assemble round
them when taking Maurice Healey a runaway convict’. Solomon was returned to
the Hobart Town Prisoners’ Barracks for a month.

— ———

TR Tl e i S g ————



Cohen - beginnings in Australia Page 1 of 3

Dack ty Ovcrviews First Page / Next page / Retuin to Home Page

Cohen

Beginnings in Australia

Henry Colien: From clothier to convict to merchant

Above HHenry Cohen 1790-1R67 Opposite: The Kizebeth Cofen, eventually acquared by Henry
Colien and Farmly, which carrivd poods and passenpers between Sydmey gnd Port Macquane

The story of the Cohen lamily in Australia witich 15 one focus of this site can convemently be commenced around twa Jewrsh conviets The first was
Henry C'ohen, a merchant wylor from tonden, who at the age ol 13 was convicted at the Old Bailey in that he "on the 20th of March, did receive and
have of a ceriatn evil-(isposed porson, 2 promissory noles ., each, the property of our sovercign Lord the King. which had been lately before swlen, he
well knowing them lo have Been slolen against the statule " Yor this on 26 Augnst 1833 he was transporied on the Lloyd 10 Australia for a sentence of 14
vears The second was James Simmons, convicled for jewel thefl from no less a personage than the Dowager Marchioness of Devonshire For (his he
reczived 1he death sentence, bul it was subsequenlly comniuted to penal servitude in Australia and he was (ransported in 1815

1t 15 possible the families had already become acquainted in Londen. Bur in any case the two convicts - Henry Colen und James Simmons - become
connecied by marriage, Sometime around 1808 Fenry, slill in London, meets a girt by the name of’ Elizabeth Simmans, and inarries her in 1809 Their
first daughicr 1s Nancy, born in 1812 After |lenry's conviction Nancy marries foseph Simmons who is the brother of James Simmons Joseph has been a
frec sctiter in Ausiralia but has relurned and marmied Nancy in Lendon 1le fhen retums 1o Australia on the ship Phe Brothers, accompanymg Elizabeth,
MNancy and the rest of Henry's family  And so the families of the two comvicis jomn

The story ol the two families have much in common Both convicts would be joined by family members as free settlers who would manage (0 make their
lives comparatively easy and productive whilst they served their time Once granted their tickets of'leave, boih convicls would then go on to esiablish
themselves in the new colony as wealthy merchants Henry becomes a merchanl, store owner and ship owner James becomes a publican, auctioneer and
eventually ihe owner of a welt stocked Sydney slore

There are of course more than one story that can be teld around families marrying and intermarrying in a complex world disrupied by emigralion both
forced and voluntary Indeed another interconnecuion has been mentioned already - the mamage berween another dauginer of [Henry - Sophia Cohen and
another free settler, Abraham Cohen, (he descendant of Don Menachem Chajim |a-Kohen of Schwienfurt So there will be no attempt here to tell "the”
stary of the Cohen family Rather it will be sufficicnt to make a few observalions about the descendants of Henry whilst drawmg anention o ether much
more substaniial accounts and other relevant resources available on s site

[n particular

a Much detail of the story of Henry Cohen and his descendants {s well rescarched and described by Philip Coleen, [lis account Henry Cohen: 1760-
1867 ia reproduged with permission heie

« Another comnbulion, in the [orm of i book by Barbara Falk, Mo Other Home: An Anglo-Jewish Story 1813-1987 (Melboume, Penguin. 1988)
pravides a more academically developed accounl af the dynamics by which Henry Cohen as o Jewish ex-convict and his descendams, would
sulTiciently integrate themselves inlo the Melboume community to became oy er several gencranons promuaent ligures in the society  |his book,
again with the kind permission ol e suthor and the publisher, Peguin Books Australia is reproduced in scanned form here

So much ol what follows Is drawn, sometimes verbatim, from these two sources (and m particular that of Philip Cohen) that footnoles to these works on
most occasions will be omilted What [ollows shouid be regarded as a precis ol themy The siant taken, however. is of cowrse the sole responsility ol 1he
site author.

In additian 1o the (wo ympartant acecunls above 1L is possible 10 read here the lranseript of inal of Henry Cohen and judge whether, on the evidence, he
should have been convicted As well some Coloma] Corespondence surrounding his entry into and lime as a convicl in Australia have been reproduced
here These include those relating to the determination that he had skills useful to the colony and us a consequence his desipnation as a "special,
subseguent mancuvers by his family to further disenangle him rom the constraints of penal servitude by atlaching him Lo ane ar other of the family. and

his eventwal condiional pardon.

Much of the suceess ol Henry, his famuly and descendanis needs (o be understood in the conext of Henry's wealth prior 10 lns canviction 1n June 182]
Henry was described as o Salesman Later that year, in October 1821, he moved to 91 Edgeware Road, Paddington and three years later is on record as a
Clothes salesman {and later Tailor) of 111 Ldgeware Road, Prddington, Middlesex By the vem of his conviction (1833) Henry had a large new and uscd
clething shop premises at 126 Edgeware Road He also had a large family with wen children four girls and six boys At his trial Henry claimed that his
business returned ham £4000 1o £3000 per year And when he was deraned i Bow Sireet Police Stration he had on his person—n addition 10 the stolen
bank promissory notes—a £100 bank nole and some sovereigns As Phelip Cohen peants owt. 1liis was a1 a tme when a tradesman earned aboul L5 per
week, an unskilled worker about £3 per week, and a domestic servant about £2 per week plus hoard

It was thus possible for Henry's family nat only to follow his Tess than glorious joreed exodus 1o Australia in a more dignitied way ahoard the Brothers
but alsy 10 set ithemselves up as a free seliler family of some wealil Correspondence from the Principal Supermtendent of Convicls. Frederick Augustus
Healy, to the Colonial Secretary on 8 January 1834 confirms thar

The Convicl Henry Ciohen, Lloy ds. who was named n the mwster List of the ship as a Tador, and as such apphicaled [s1c] 1o the mounted

police, tums out 1o have heen a Metcham Fador, and knows nothing of the trade. and he has been accordingly returned by Capt Williams to
the Convict Blarracks] On seeing this man this moming. und leaming semewhat of his history, T find he is onc of (hat class ol convicts

http://genealogy. metastudies.net/ZDocs/Stories/stories03 1.html 29/10/2009
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called “special” but as my impression on this subject may be erroncaus [ farward him herewith for your inspecture [sic] ond for the
Commands of His Exccllency the Governor. as (o his disposal  This man is a Jew, and was tried for having stolen Bank notes, and [ am
miormed his family have brought a large sum Lo the colony by the Brothers,

Henry himsell was of course well educated, an entrepreneurial businessman, and fherefore useful (o whoever might obtain his services and with a family
of sufficient means to cncourage an arrangement of mulual benefit. When the Colonial administration saw through the various altempis 1o attach Henry
dircctly to the family ke was sent to Port Macquaric which had been established in 1321 as a place of secondary punishment,

Looking west down Clarence Stecet, Port Macquarie. ¢ 1870

Lit Tty [ Heury s poisned on sequost as o Gominte ssevam) of Major Archihald Clunes Froes. § s dutses are aor kndwn frut, g 1w i

sl e waslikely g0 Do e o 0F § doveestic sirvant, Mor il wm Enes sliol els my e rmancsed) Weiwes bis iy s ihe gond Mujor,
Mevertieles Plilip Cohen ida evidence iha wiil the bajor bved on [0S peopedy ol Lakicnnes, whach s s milos from e iisnh, IRy Wi
Viving wigh hiy unify i tie il ol Poct Macyunrie’ uhstegues) pmmps o have im enkgned i s S emons | who. jisd b ses g cuiuliismal
pemedont | werer ol socoeehal His i D Februery' TR0 Mesn! was graiibd b Tickes of Legve sl o’ sss i e mi ke snmal o] s s i i
own name, of least in Port Macquarie

Thasc assets were by now considerable. “The Cohen family becanie well known traders in the district, with a store in Horton Streel {now the
Commonwealih Bank building), and their own vessel. the Efizabeth Cohen. which carried goods and passengers berween Sydnecy and Port Macquarie
indeed, the Ehizabeth Cohen was not the only vessel owned by Henry. He owied also, for example. a sicamship - Thusile - whose sister ship Rase is
shown below

The Rose, sister ship of the Tustle owned by Henry Cohen

Author Jack Kaskie, in his book Sty Thar Shaywa dosarstaar (§ydey Angus & Robertan, 1987) slates (hat Henry “apparcntly eamed (he admiration
of the Governor, who owned & prepery st kalomesrs nymy: B 1B al. | o wes aflowed 10 1ake the bultock cart to town for slores and became the
stalion’s bookkeeper.” He notes that “FHenry cutublsihed n whiliile pizery Eirm m Cedege Street. Sydney, and 10 serve the interests of the north coast
pioncers became onc of the first aliarbsslilers i the Mosth Ciraet Sodnmadip Csepass . Mesars Cahen and Company thnved.”
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*H Cohen & Son™ in George Street, [tont Joseph Fowles' Sydney in 1848

Hcenry Cohen died in Sydney on | Augusi 1867, & successfl man of considerable property and wealth

http:ﬂgenealogy.metastudies.neleDocs/SloriesfstoriesOZ}_I .himl] 29/10/2009
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Cohen's Family Hotel, Margarel Si Sydney. [880

Enougl has been said to sketch the way 1n which Henry Cohen and his loyal family were able to resurrect their entreptencurial success, nterupled so
rudely by his conviction and transportanon, in the new woild of colonial Australia, nch as it was in opportunity for free setilers with means What
remains is an aceouni of tus children and how they built on his success 1n the dynamically developing world i which they found themselves Tor this
chick here

Back to Overviews Firgl Page / Next page / Retwrn ¢ 1lome Page
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THE FEARED OUTPOST PRISONS

Australia sometimes suffered yet another transportation. If they were foolish

or rebellious cnough to behave badly, they could be sent from Sydney or Van
Diemen's Land to Norfolk Island, Newcascle, Porc Macquarie, or Moreton Bay
Each of these was a dreaded place of further punishment for the convicts who refused
their firsc opportunity of rehabilitanion. Curious personalities sometimes emerged
from the tales about these prison hells, such as Lewis Lazarus, the explorer, James
Lawrence, actor and dtarist, and James Woolfe, the pirate. But in general, it is the
outcasts of Australian Jewry of these times whom we encounter in the prisons

Newcastle was discovered in 1796 by Lieutenant John Shortland, He was pursuing
some convicts who had stolen a boar, and when he entered “a fine river” sixry-nine
miles north of Sydney he named it the Hunter after the Governor of that ume. Cliffs
on the coastline were found to be rich in coal, and enormous deposits of oyster shell
promised a useful source of lime which could be used for Sydney’s new buildings

1 Convicrs were sent to work the coal and burn the lime, and it was soon realised that
the “Coal River” would be 2 handy place in which to dump troublesome prisoners.
They were worked so hard and treated so savagely that some of them chose suicide
as the quickest way of escape, but coal-workings and lime-pits had the desired effect
on most prisoners sent to Newcastle and the majority decided to reform. Few convicts
stayed there for very long, and they usually settled in Sydney when their sentence
was completed.

Among the Jews sent to Newcastle were Ikey Sclomon’s companion Joel Joseph
in 1813, Samuel Lyons in 1819, and Vaiben and Emanuel Solomon in 1821. Theiwr
stories have been told

As the rural seulement of New South Wales expanded, Newcastle became com-
paratively civilised and the authorities had to look further afield for an isolared
penal settlement. They chose Port Macquarie, 220 miles north of Sydney and dis-
covered by Surveyor-General John Oxley in 1818. Port Macquarie was established
by Governor Macquarie in 1821, bur by this time sertlement was spreading so rapidly
along the coast that in less chan ten years Port Macquarie also had lost its isolation

CONVICTS WHO WERE PUNISHED BY TRANSPORTATION FROM ENGLAND TO

306



and was opened for free settlement. There were convicrs at Port Macquarie until
1847 and at Newcastle until 1855, but they were greatly outnumbered by the free
sectlers.

Very few Jews were senr to Port Macquarie, the most notable being Michael
John Davies in 1832 and Henry Cohen in 1833. Both of them were allowed to bring
their families into exile with them, and both became part of the commercial life of
the new region! All that remains today of a small but once flourishing Jewish com-
munity are some well-preserved rombsrones.

By Governor Sir Thomas Brisbane’s time it was necessary to look further afield for
places of banishment for those deemed to be beyond redemption. In 1824 Sir Thomas
decided to re-open the Norfolk Island penal settlement, which had been abandoned in
1809, and in 1823 he had sent John Oxley northwards to seek another isolated spot
which would have the double advanrage of providing a penal settlement and an cutpost
which would show the flag against French encroachment. Oxley found Moreton
Bay, some 300 miles north of Sydney, and gave the name of Brisbane River to the river
which ran into it. Sir Thomas sailed north to inspect and approve it, and on 30 August
1824 the first convict ship left Sydney for Moreton Bay. Within a few months the
settlement had moved inland to the banks of the Brisbane River, to make a wrerched
beginning to the story of Brisbane, capital of the future colony of Queensland.

Despair and misery reigned at Morcton Bay? The commandant, Captain Patrick
Logan, was said to have been appointed ar the suggestion of his fellow officers in
Sydney in order to get rid of him. Only the most incorrigible prisoners from Sydney
and Port Macquarte were sent there, and until Port Arthur was established in Van

Uhe hirst convice serclement ar Neweastle




Cohen and Cohen

Last week, | was potering around the
Histone Cemelery — not bent en any ghoulish
aclivity, but just Lo take a gander a1 a tree which
has inrerested me [or some time

The iree is on the weslern side of the
cemetery alongside 1he gravestones of two young
people who died in the early days of free setrle-
meni in the 1own — one at the age of 12 years
and rhe oiher at the age of three

The tree. which 1 mennoned in this column
in November 1980, was first mentioned by a
visitor (o Port Macquarie, an American of Jewish
ancestry who was struck by the shape of its bran-
ches, which held and extraordinary resemblance
o the Memorah — a candelabrum of seven
candles {onginalty nine), which has a signilicant
place in Jewish history

It was mentioned in the New Testament

[1 way writien that the Roman Emperor
Tirus claimed the Memorah when his men ran
sacked ihe Tabernacle

So much for the explanation [ went along,
as a marter ol curiosily, 1o see i the tree still held
its shape alter these two yeats and it has

The remains lving in the graves were once
David son ol Mcyer, whe passed away on the
2910 Sivan in the Jewish vear of 5596 and Rosa
daughter of Abraham Cohen

Abraham Cohen, [ather ol Rosa, was one of
the earliest merchams in Port Macguane and
began his carcer 1n the colony as printer of the
Sydney newspaper, The Austrahan

Alter steering lus way out of several defama-
Llioa suits, Cohen decided there musl be an casicr
way ol making a living, so he moved up 1o Porl
Macquarie with the idea of making a fortune asa
storeheeper

He wanred to emulate the success of his
lather-in law, also a Cohen, who made a pretiy
packet oul of the lown

Not content with just setthng in Port Mac-
guaric, Abraham spread his wings 10 Tamworth
and Goulburn where he also apened stores

Port Macquarie, at the time, had slipped inlo
a deep recession and the population was lalling
ofl as the result, so Abraham moved on to green
pastures

His father-in-taw, Henry Cohen, was a
wealthy stock broker in England until a couple of
slolen promissory notes “acaidenrally’ fell into hus
POSSESSI0T

The law didn't take kindly to the stip and
senl him on his way o the colony in a convict
ship, but allowed him w0 cart his wile and large
family of cleven or so with him

In December 1833, he arrived ai Syduey and
was Lnmediatcly senl to the convicl settlement of
Port Macquarie

I Born Mbcousne he was assigned to Major
lnnesand fow s time worked lor the Major al
I ke Critags’ — 0 inunsion a few miles south
of the township

By the time (he town was Lurned over (o lree
settiement and Cohen had become unfettered. he
was ready 10 go 1nto business on his own acconns

Before long, he had a huge warehouse, at the
back of The Royal. owned a hotel and a ship, the
Thistle, which he used o ply between Sydney and
Port Macquarie.

He built wharves and purchased another
ship which he named Elizabeth. alter his wilc,

In 1845, Henry Cohen moved down (o
Sydney and socon hecame a big noisc in Lhe
business world

His Port Macquarie investiments were left (o
his sons, Edward and Samuel, to run

Edward looked alier the shipping service and
the store {or a Tow years while brorher Samuel set
up his shingle as the tawn auctioneer And then
Edward meed down fo-the poldfialds o iy hin
heck g e e the only Colien in the o,

laiemein e wend along o o vjeidy paes for
Suim, uniid oie day woprree g fell e ne lap

I THEN, (e sehooner Wanderes was wreik
ed at the crance to Port Macquarie and im-
mediately began breaking up.

Anxious to sell whatever could be salvaged
from the wreek, the satling master, Wilham O1-
uwell, made a deal with Sam Cohen lor Cohen to
buy the lot

Ottiwell acred on behall of Lhe Wanderer's
owner Benjamin  Bovd, who had been
unavoidably detained, aficr losing his head during
a briel visit to the Solomon Islands.

There was a greal unrest around the Lown at
the time thar Coben had been a bil tricky in his
dealings, but rumblings were soon siilled when
Cahen allowed the disgruntled 1o "hep in for their
chop’. letting them carr ofl valuable possessions
for a song. Well, almost a song — less his commis-
10T

Noi long after this historical event Cohen
left the district, leaving the people of Port 1o
slumber on



